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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Governing Board 
Virgin Islands Port Authority 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Virgin Islands Port Authority (the 
Authority), a component unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands as of and for the years 
ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Virgin Islands Port Authority, as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matters 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2018, the Authority adopted Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Also as discussed in Note 16 to the financial 
statements, the Authority may be adversely impacted by the outbreak of a novel strain of 
coronavirus, known as COVID-19, which was declared a global pandemic by the World Health 
Organization in March 2020. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplemental Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of the Authority’s proportionate share of the 
total OPEB liability, the schedule of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability, and the schedule of the Authority’s pension contributions on pages 6 through 16 and 51 
through 53 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Financial Information  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The other financial information, 
as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 
30, 2020, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

June 30, 2020 



 

 

Management’s  
Discussion and Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Virgin Islands Port Authority 
(A Component Unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands) 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

6 

The purpose of the following management’s discussion and analysis of the financial performance 
and activity of the Virgin Islands Port Authority (the Authority or VIPA) is to help readers understand 
the basic financial statements of the Authority for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, 
with selected comparative information for the year ended September 30, 2016.  This discussion has 
been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the basic financial 
statements and the notes thereto, which follow this section. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The Authority is a public corporation and an autonomous governmental instrumentality of the 
Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands. The Authority owns and operates the air and marine terminals 
of the U.S. Virgin Islands through two operating divisions, Aviation and Marine.   
 
The Aviation Division manages two airport facilities, the Cyril E. King Airport (CEKA) located on the 
island of St. Thomas and the Henry E. Rohlsen Airport (HERA) located on the island of St. Croix.  The 
Aviation Division’s revenues consist mainly of landing and passenger fees and rental income. The 
Aviation Division also generates a small amount of revenues from the leases of a housing complex 
and certain properties outside the airport facilities, which are known as Special Facilities. 
 
The Marine Division is responsible for the maintenance and operation of marine cargo and passenger 
facilities in St. Thomas, St. Croix, and St. John. Revenues are mostly derived from charges to cruise 
ship lines and cargo lines, including property rental fees. 
 
Economic Factors 2018 
 
Hurricanes Irma and Maria wrought devastation on the U.S. Virgin Islands and did significant damage 
to the economy which had slowly begun to recover from the impacts of the 2008 Great Recession 
and the 2012 Hovensa Oil Refinery closure.  Four consecutive years of economic decline from 2007 
to 2014 was reversed, and the U.S. Virgin Islands steady improvement was immediately impacted. 
According to the Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA) before the hurricanes, estimates of real GDP 
rose modestly by 0.3% in 2015 and 0.9% percent in 2016. However, the U.S. Virgin Islands has seen 
the impacts of the 2017 Hurricanes on its economy in the form of lost output, decline in 
employment, substantial increases in initial unemployment claims, and a decline in tourism. 
 
In this challenging environment, the Authority did not remain unscathed. Like the Government of 
the Virgin Islands, fiscal year 2018 started on a downturn for the Authority due to the impact of the 
Hurricanes on the tourism sector; a sector which consists of over 60% of the U.S. Virgin Islands GDP 
and contributes 80% of VIPA’s annual revenue collection. However, the Authority was able to 
stabilize its operations with the use of insurance proceeds and a pragmatic approach to recovery.  
 
In fiscal year 2018, as part of its recovery and rebuilding phase, the Authority seized the opportunity 
to reassess and reshape itself by instituting resiliency efforts inclusive of hardening of its facilities 
and reassessment of all its assets. VIPA adopted a proactive approach to its recovery efforts, 
identified a listing of priority assets, and implemented a critical path methodology to update its 
asset portfolio.   
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The Authority’s recovery included the identification of the following:  
 

 Assets with critical island economic and operational value  
 Assets with major monetary value to VIPA  
 Assets that are large income generators for VIPA  

 
A construction manager (LeMartec) was brought in who identified the scope of work for each asset. 
Using the prioritization list, the Authority was able to obtain insurance proceeds advances and begin 
its path towards economic recovery by rebuilding these priority assets first.  
 
In fiscal year 2018, VIPA’s revenues continued to be impacted by the loss of hotels, guesthouses, 
and other units available after the hurricanes. According to the Virgin Islands Bureau of Economic 
Research (BER), visitor arrivals experienced a dramatic 44.7% reduction, and approximately 60% of 
the Territory’s lodging accommodation was unavailable primarily due to physical damage to many 
of the Islands’ large hotels. Additionally, the Territory’s hotel occupancy rate averaged 11.4% in the 
first quarter of fiscal year 2018 compared to 50.7% in fiscal year 2017. This loss of available lodging 
directly impacted arrivals to the Territory and spurred the U.S. Virgin Islands’ Department of 
Tourism (DOT) to engage Airbnb in a campaign to replace some of the loss. The restoration of room 
capacity made the accommodation of overnight guests possible, and positively impacted airlift to 
the Territory.    
 
The U.S. Virgin Islands, in 2018, was named the top Airbnb destination in the Caribbean by the 
vacation rental website. This, along with the opening of the Limetree Oil Storage Terminal in St. 
Croix, and the economic growth from the rebuilding efforts showed an economic revitalization at 
the end of fiscal year 2018. 
 
While the outlook for economic growth was weakened in the aftermath of the Hurricanes, VIPA is 
optimistic that the Territory’s economy will rebound due to the infusion of federal hurricane 
recovery funds, tax cuts, and public and private rebuilding efforts. The Authority continues to do 
its best to stimulate the economy through the continuation of our capital improvement projects and 
collaborations with the DOT, federal partners, and other stakeholders; this in conjunction with other 
expansionary economic and fiscal policies implemented by the federal and local government, will 
lead to a long-term growth trajectory.  
 
This was evident by initial fiscal year 2019 numbers, which showed a marked return to pre-hurricane 
2017 levels. However, the events of the global COVID-19 pandemic in the second quarter 2020 has 
put a halt to the economic revival.  While the Authority has been able to capitalize on the CARES 
Act in its Aviation division with a grant of $38.9 million, the Marine division continues to struggle 
due to the CDC No Sail Order. 
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Using the Financial Statements 
 
The Authority’s financial report includes three financial statements: the Statement of Net Position, 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash 
Flows. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
Operating Revenues 
 
The total operating revenues for the Virgin Islands Port Authority for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 are 
$40.8 million and $54.3 million, respectively. The fluctuation in operating revenues when compared 
to fiscal year 2017 is a decrease of approximately 24.8%. The Aviation Division recorded a decrease 
of approximately 32.8% in revenues in 2018 when compared to 2017. Additionally, 2018 marine 
revenues decreased by approximately 18.3% when compared to 2017. The hurricanes of 2017, Irma 
and Maria, which hit the Territory in September 2017 impacted the Authority in the last month of 
our fiscal year 2017 and caused significant revenue shortfalls in 2018. Continued recovery efforts 
from September 2017 through fiscal year 2018 will determine 2019 and future fiscal years to come. 
 
The 2018 decrease in revenues under the Aviation Division of 32.8% resulted from an overall 
decrease of 40% in passenger activity when compared to 2017, which comprised of a decrease of 
365,946 passengers at the Cyril E. King Airport Terminal in St. Thomas and a decrease of 17,769 
passengers at the Henry E. Rohlsen Airport in St. Croix. Enplanements at both airports decreased 
with enplanements of 0.57 million and 0.95 million for fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
 
In addition, the Aviation Division user’s fees and dues indicated a 37.1% decrease also due to 
diminished passenger and landing traffic. The 24.7% and 30.2% decrease in rental revenues and 
other aviation revenue categories, respectively, were directly attributed to the rent and concession 
rebates granted to aviation customers amounting to $0.7 million, as a result of the hurricanes.   
 
In the Marine Division, overall revenues decreased by 18.3%.  The decrease in users’ fees and dues 
of 15.4% was attributed to the loss of revenue with the closure of the ports after the hurricanes in 
the beginning of fiscal year 2018.  The wharfage dues showed a decrease of 20.6% with early closures 
of the ports and diminished cruise passenger traffic at the Crown Bay location. Similar to the 
Aviation division, the 17.2% decrease in the rental revenues is attributed to $1.0 million of rent 
rebates granted to customers as a result of the hurricanes. The 51.2% decrease in the other revenue 
category is attributed to fewer utility fee collections due to territory wide power losses along with 
the closure of the Redhook parking lot. 
 
The total operating revenues for the Virgin Islands Port Authority for fiscal years 2017 and 2016 are 
$54.3 million and $54.8 million, respectively. The fluctuation in operating revenues when compared 
to fiscal year 2016 is a decrease of approximately 1%. The Aviation Division recorded a decrease of 
approximately 0.1% in revenues in 2017 when compared to 2016. Additionally, 2017 marine revenues 
decreased by approximately 1.4% when compared to 2016. The hurricanes of 2017, Irma and Maria, 
which hit the Territory in September 2017 impacted the Authority in the last month of our fiscal 
year. 
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The 2017 decrease in revenues under the Aviation Division of 0.1% resulted from an overall decrease 
of 3.3% in passenger activity when compared to 2016; which comprised of a decrease of 32,341 
passengers at the Cyril E. King Airport Terminal in St. Thomas and a decrease of 393 passengers at 
the Henry E. Rohlsen Airport Terminal in St. Croix. Enplanements at both airports decreased with 
enplanements of 0.95 million and 0.97 million for fiscal years 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
In addition, the Aviation Division user’s fees and dues indicated a 2.2% increase even after the 
hurricanes due to implemented increases to the General Aviation rates related to landing fees, 
contributing a $0.5 million increase in revenues over last year. The 2.5% and 3.9% decrease in rental 
revenues and other aviation revenue categories, respectively, were directly attributed to the rent 
and concession rebates granted to aviation customers amounting to $0.1 million, as a result of the 
hurricanes.   
 
In the Marine Division, overall revenues decreased by 1.4%.  The decrease in users’ fees and dues of 
4% was attributed to the loss of revenue with the closure of the ports after the hurricanes and the 
special agreement of a one-year transfer of the $1.00 increase in port dues to The West Indian 
Company Limited (WICO), another component unit of the Government.  The loss in this category 
was mitigated by the return of port dues collections in St. Croix. The wharfage dues showed an 
increase of 11% due to the expiration of the special cruise agreement with Princess and Holland 
cruise lines along with an increase of $1.00 in cruise ship wharfage dues in the St. Thomas district 
and the return of wharfage dues collections in the St. Croix district.   Similar to the Aviation division, 
the 8.3% decrease in the rental revenues is attributed to $0.3M of rent rebates granted to customers 
as a result of the hurricanes. The 26% decrease in the other revenue category is attributed to the 
closure of the Redhook parking lot due to the construction of the new parking terminal. 
 
The following table details the components of and changes in operating revenues: 
 

(In thousands of dollars)  2018 
 

2017 
 

2016  
Change 

2018  
Change 

 2017  
           

           
Aviation operating revenues:           

Users’ fees and dues  $   8,975  $  14,279 $  13,972  $   (5,304)  $    307  
Rentals     4,716     6,264 6,423     (1,548)  (159)  
Others  2,869  4,109   4,278  (1,240)  (169)  

           
Total Aviation operating revenues  16,560  24,652 24,673  (8,092)  (21)  
           
Marine operating revenues:           

Users’ fees and dues  11,962  14,146 14,736  (2,184)  (590)  
Wharfage dues  7,373  9,285 8,363  (1,912)  922  
Rentals  4,566  5,517 6,018  (951)  (501)  
Others  364  745 1,006  (381)  (261)  

           
Total Marine operating revenues  24,265  29,693 30,123  (5,428)  (430)  
           
Total operating revenues  $  40,825  $  54,345 $  54,796  $  (13,520)  $  (451)  
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Wharfage and Tonnage 
 
The Virgin Islands Port Authority assesses fees through its tariff to users for use of its wharfs and for 
tonnage based on cargo capacity. The Authority charges such fees to enable it to maintain the 
various marine facilities for expenses such as dredging, repairs and maintenance, and replacement 
of facilities as needed. 
 
The U. S. Virgin Islands (USVI) is defined as a Territory of the United States and as such is authorized 
by Congress to set its own custom duties. The revenue generated from custom duties is intended to 
assist the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands’ operations. Through a Memorandum of Agreement 
(MOA) signed in 1994 by the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands (the Government or GVI) and 
Customs (now Custom Border and Protection and referred to as CBP), the latter was authorized to 
collect the USVI custom duties and the wharfage and tonnage port user fees of the Virgin Islands 
Port Authority. The MOA required CBP to pay the revenue to the USVI treasury, less CBP’s cost of 
collecting both the custom duties and wharfage and tonnage user fees of VIPA, at which point GVI 
charges a 5% administrative fee for processing a check to VIPA. 
 
Over time, CBP’s cost for collecting has exceeded the amount of both the custom duties and port 
user fees collected. This has directly impacted the amounts available to remit to GVI and to VIPA. 
At the close of fiscal year 2009, the Authority wrote off $6.2 million due from CBP and at the close 
of fiscal year 2012, an additional amount of $3.5 million was written off.   
 
Moving forward, GVI has removed VIPA from the MOA. Effective March 1, 2011, VIPA commenced 
collecting an equivalent tariff for the former wharfage and tonnage under a new categorization of 
harbor use fee and facility use fee.  
 
Operating Expenses 
 
Fiscal year 2018 operating expenses for the Authority increased approximately 6.6% in comparison 
to an 8.6% increase in fiscal year 2017. Payroll, payroll taxes, and fringe benefits slightly increased 
by 0.2%. Repairs, materials and supplies, and insurance increased by 42.3%, 153.2%, and 32.8%, 
respectively. The increases in repairs and material and supplies were primarily due to hurricane 
charges of $1.8 million and $8.0 million, respectively.  The increase in insurance was due to an 
increase of premiums resulting from the underwriting costs related to hurricane claims. 
 
Fiscal year 2017 operating expenses for the Authority increased approximately 8.6% in comparison 
to an 18.0% increase in fiscal year 2016. Payroll, payroll taxes, and fringe benefits increased by 5.6% 
mainly due to $1.9 million of medical insurance contributions paid by employees expensed back to 
the employer’s medical expense based on an arbitrator’s ruling. Materials and supplies and 
insurance decreased by 9% and 4.2%, respectively; these aforementioned decreases were offset by 
an increase in repairs and maintenance of 4.5%, depreciation expense of 19.7%, and other operating 
expenses of 18.9%.  
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The following table details the components of and changes in operating expenses: 

 
Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses 
 
The Authority has permission from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to collect passenger 
facility charges (PFC) of $4.50 for each passenger departing from CEKA and $3.00 for each passenger 
departing from HERA. These funds are restricted for certain capital projects as established by the 
Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion Act of 1990.  The Authority collected approximately $1.4 
million, $2.8 million, and $3.4 million of PFC revenues in fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016, 
respectively. 
 
Effective August 1, 2013, the Authority authorized a Customer Facility Charge (CFC) of $2.00 per 
transaction day per contract to be imposed for the rental of a vehicle from an on-airport rental car 
company located at the Cyril E. King Airport. The Authority collected approximately $0.3 million, 
$0.5 million, and $0.5 million of CFC revenues for each of the fiscal years ended in 2018, 2017, and 
2016, respectively. 
 
In June 2018, the FAA issued a $1.5 million civil penalty against the Authority for the alleged 
violations of airport safety regulations at CEKA and HERA. In fiscal year 2018, the Authority recorded 
the $1.5 million penalty as non-operating expenses in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position and recorded a long-term liability in the Statement of Net Position. In March 
2020, the Authority signed a settlement agreement with FAA and agreed to remit payment of $1.5 
million in four installments. The first installment of $0.4 million was paid on March 2020. However, 
due to COVID-19, the other installment payments have been deferred.  
 
In fiscal year 2018, the Authority recognized $0.4 million of non-operating revenue related to the 
other postemployment benefit cost paid by the Government for the Authority’s retirees. The plan 
is a non-trusted pay-as-you-go plan. No assets have been accumulated in a trust that meets the 
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions and expenses are paid as they become due, also 
described in Note 11.  
 
 
 
 
 

(In thousands of dollars)  2018 
 

2017  
 

2016 
Change 

 2018  
Change 

 2017  
           
Payroll, payroll taxes, and fringe 
  benefits  $  38,585 

 
$  38,515  $  36,466 $      70  $  2,049  

Repairs and maintenance  3,881  2,728  2,610 1,153  118  
Materials, supplies, and other  
  services  14,068 

 
5,555  6,103 8,513  (548)  

Insurance  3,409  2,567  2,679 842  (112)  
Depreciation  16,285  21,049  17,587 (4,764)  3,462  
Other operating expenses  7,064  7,707  6,484 (643)  1,223  
           
Total operating expenses  $  83,292  $  78,121  $  71,929 $  5,171  $  6,192  



Virgin Islands Port Authority 
(A Component Unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands) 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

12 

Capital Contributions 
 
Capital contributions are received from the U.S. Government, mainly the FAA, Transportation 
Security Administration (TSA), Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA), Economic Development Administration (EDA), and the Government of the 
U.S. Virgin Islands to fund capital projects.   
 
In fiscal year 2018, contributions amounted to $9.7 million. Federal contributions from the FAA were 
$6.3 million to enhance security, rehabilitate and evaluate the Cyril E. King Airport, acquire an 
Aircraft, Rescue, and Firefighting (ARFF) vehicle, reconstruct Gate 5, and design General Aviation 
apron, and $0.8 million to rehabilitate and inspect the Henry E. Rohlsen runway, install a perimeter 
fence, construct and design an ARFF station, and acquire sweeper and emergency generator. Other 
Federal contributions came from the TSA of $0.4 million for the security and canine reimbursement 
program. Federal contributions related to FEMA hurricane contributions amounted to $2.0 million. 
Local contributions related to a port security grant amounted to $0.2 million. 
 
In fiscal year 2017, contributions amounted to $9.9 million. Federal contributions from the FAA were 
$1.3 million to enhance security, rehabilitate and evaluate the Cyril E. King Airport, acquire an 
Aircraft, Rescue, and Firefighting (ARFF) vehicle, and $8.0 million to rehabilitate and inspect the 
Henry E. Rohlsen runway, install a perimeter fence, and construct and design an ARFF station. Other 
Federal contributions came from the TSA of $0.4 million for the security and canine reimbursement 
program. Local contributions related to a port security grant amounted to $0.2 million. 
 
Special Item 
 
During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, insurance recoveries amounting to $56.2 million and $4.0 million 
have been used to offset the impairment loss, in accordance with the guidelines of GASB Statement 
No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance 
Recoveries, resulting in net insurance recoveries of $56.2 million and net impairment loss of $28.9 
million, respectively. 
 
Change in Net Position  
 
The total change in net position decreased by $0.7 million and $40.9 million in 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. This change resulted from total operating expenditures of $83.3 million and $78.1 
million, offset by operating revenues of $40.8 million and $54.3 million, net non-operating revenues 
(expenses) of ($0.8) million and $1.9 million, special item related to insurance recovery net of 
(impairment loss) on capital assets of $56.2 million in 2018 and ($28.9) million in 2017, and capital 
contributions of $9.7 million and $9.9 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively. Fiscal year 2018 also 
had a decrease in the beginning net position of $23.3 million related to the change in accounting 
principle for GASB Statement No. 75. 
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Statements of Net Position 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Authority at the end of the 
fiscal year. A summarized comparison of the various components of financial position at September 
30, 2018, 2017, and 2016 is as follows: 
 
(In thousands of dollars)  2018  2017  2016  
        

Assets        
Current assets                                                  $   98,521  $   67,092  $   61,376  
        

Noncurrent assets:        
Capital assets, net  216,462  207,151  236,968  
Other noncurrent assets      3,843  3,836  3,831  

        

Total assets  318,826  278,079  302,175  
        
Deferred outflows of resources    38,039  49,175  42,882  
       

 

Liabilities        
Current liabilities    28,674  22,655  15,005  
Noncurrent liabilities    213,468  200,445  184,701  

        

Total liabilities   242,142  223,100  199,706  
        
Deferred inflows of resources     12,483  1,206  1,538  
 
Net position       

 

Net investment in capital assets   192,035  188,121  214,411  
Restricted     26,949  31,341  36,222  
Unrestricted (deficit)  (116,744)  (116,514)  (106,820)  

        

Total net position  $  102,240  $  102,948  $  143,813  
 
During fiscal year 2018, the net increase in capital assets amounting to approximately $9.3 million 
was the net effect of additions and retirements amounting to $26.3 million and $0.7 million, 
respectively, net of depreciation expense of $16.3 million.   
 
During fiscal year 2017, the net decrease in capital assets amounting to approximately $29.8 million 
was the net effect of additions, retirements, and impairment of capital assets amounting to $24.1 
million, $0.4 million and $32.5 million, respectively, net of depreciation expense of $21.0 million.   
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The most significant additions were related to the following capital projects: 
 
(In thousands of dollars)  2018  2017  2016  
        
Apron Rehabilitation – HERA                   $0.3 million  $ 0.6 million  $ 2.7 million  
        
Aircraft Rescue Firefighting Station – HERA  $0.5 million  $ 5.2 million  $ 2.1 million  
        
Crown Bay Pier Extension                                            $0.6 million  $ 2.5 million           -  
        
Electrical Room Upgrade – CEKA   $0.3 million  $ 4.3 million           -  
        
Red Hook Parking Lot Construction  $2.0 million  $ 1.7 million  -  
        
Taxiway Rehabilitation – CEKA   $5.0 million  $ 1.2 million  -  
        
Baggage Claim Renovations – PFC  $0.4 million  $ 0.8 million  -  
        
CEKA Passenger Terminal  $7.8 million  -  -  
        
HERA Passenger Terminal  $2.6 million  -  -  
        
CEKA Terminal Expansion  $0.5 million  -  -  
        
Dredging – Crown Bay Marina  -   $ 0.3 million  $ 1.6 million  
        

Runway and Taxiway Rehabilitation – HERA  -  $ 3.3 million     -  
        
Paved Container Storage - St. John  -  -  $ 1.0 million  
        
Public Announcement System - CEKA  -  -  $ 0.8 million  

        
Rehabilitation - General Aviation - CEKA     -  -  $ 0.2 million  
        
Capital Financing and Debt Management 

The Authority has three bond issues outstanding as of September 30, 2018.  They are the 2014 Marine 
Revenue Series A, B & C Bonds that were issued in October 2014. The Marine Revenue Bonds were 
issued in a three-part series of 2014A (AMT), 2014B (Non-AMT), and 2014C (Federally taxable), in 
principal amounts of $28.8 million, $14.9 million, and $4.9 million, respectively. The Marine 
Revenue Bonds were issued for (i) refunding $24.5 million in 2003 Series A & C Marine Revenue 
bonds; (ii) financing of various capital projects; (iii) fund a deposit to the debt service fund; (iv) 
fund a deposit to the operation, maintenance, renewal and replacement reserve account; and (v) 
pay the cost of issuance of the 2014 Bonds.      
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A summary of the 2014 Marine Bonds’ terms follows: 
 Interest 

Rate 
  
$28,765,000 Series A, due serially from 2015 through 2033 4.00% to 5.00% 
$14,900,000 Series B, due serially from 2015 through 2044 3.00% to 5.00% 
$4,920,000 Series C, due serially from 2015 through 2025 2.00% to 5.00% 

 
The aggregate balance of the 2014 Marine Revenue Bonds as of September 30, 2018 and 2017 is 
$39.8 million and $42.2 million, respectively.    
 
As discussed in Note 6 to the financial statements, the new bond indentures require a debt service 
coverage ratio of not less than 125% which is based on a formula also described in Note 6. In fiscal 
years 2018 and 2017, the Authority complied with the debt service coverage. The following table 
summarizes the results of such calculation for 2018: 
   
   
Debt service coverage ratio-required    125%  
Fiscal year 2018 debt service coverage ratio 445%  
   
Excess of debt service coverage over bond indentures requirement    320%  
 
Significant Currently Known Facts 

St. Croix Municipal Landfill at Estate Anguilla 
 
The Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands has addressed the previous issues related to the potential 
flight hazards created by birds attracted to the Anguilla Landfill near the Henry E. Rohlsen Airport, 
in accordance with the approved Compliance Plan between the Virgin Islands Waste Management 
Authority, VIPA, and the FAA. With the landfill now only accepting baled debris, the FAA was 
satisfied with the progress made towards closing the facility.  
 
The Authority is maintaining the airfields at Henry E. Rohlsen and Cyril E. King Airport mostly with 
Federal financial assistance from FAA’s Airport Improvement (AIP) Grant Program and from the 
discretionary funds. The AIP funds are allocated by formula or other entitlement processes.  
Discretionary funds are administered by the Secretary of Transportation. Since 1982, the Authority 
has received approximately $224.0 million in entitlement and discretionary funds combined.  A total 
of $73.0 million in Entitlement funds and $61.0 million in Discretionary funds for Cyril E. King 
Airport, and $67.0 million in Entitlement funds and $23.0 million in Discretionary funds for Henry E. 
Rohlsen Airport have been received. 
 
Coronavirus COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus, known as COVID-19, was reported which quickly spread 
around the globe, including the United States and its Territories. In March 2020, the Governor of the 
U.S. Virgin Islands declared a state of emergency due to COVID-19. The extent of the impact of COVID-
19 on the operational and financial performance of the Authority will depend on certain developments, 
including the duration and spread of the outbreak and the impact on the cruise ship and airline 
industries, employees, and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. 
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Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the Authority’s customers, creditors, and other 
interested persons with a general overview of its finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s 
accountability for the funds it receives. If you have questions about this report, or need additional 
financial information, contact the Chief Financial Officer, Virgin Islands Port Authority, P.O. Box 
301707, St. Thomas, V.I. 00803. 



 

 

Financial Statements 

 



September 30, 2018 2017

Assets
Current assets:
     Cash and cash equivalents (restricted - $10,847 in 2018
        and $10,600 in 2017) 61,334$       30,988$      
     Cash and cash equivalents - sinking funds (restricted) 12,259         16,905        
     Short-term investments 12,449         11,384        
     Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful 
        accounts of $4,870 in 2018 and $3,284 in 2017) 4,385           3,160          
     Receivables from U.S. Government agencies (net of allowance
        for doubtful accounts of $100 in 2018 and 2017) 4,959           2,216          
     Prepaid insurance 1,908           1,024          
     Other current assets 1,227           1,415          
Total current assets 98,521         67,092        

Noncurrent assets:
     Capital assets, net 216,462       207,151      
     Sinking funds (restricted) 3,243           3,236          
     Long-term investment (restricted) 600              600             

Total noncurrent assets 220,305       210,987      

Total assets 318,826       278,079      

Deferred outflows of resources
     Deferred charge on debt refunding 229              276             
     Pension related outflows 37,810         48,899        

Total deferred outflows of resources 38,039$       49,175$      

Liabilities 
Current liabilities:
      Accounts payable related to capital projects, including retainage on contracts 1,599$         1,397$        
      Other accounts payable and accrued liabilities 21,637         15,934        
      Unearned revenues 1,000           1,000          
      Compensated absences payable 982              1,006          
      Note payable 891              873             
      Bonds payable 2,565           2,445          

Total current liabilities 28,674         22,655        

Noncurrent liabilities:
     Compensated absences payable 1,152           1,376          
     Claims payable 1,467           -             
     Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability 23,127         -             
     Bonds payable 39,717         42,911        
     Net pension liability 148,005       156,158      

Total noncurrent liabilities 213,468       200,445      

Total liabilities 242,142$     223,100$    

Deferred inflows of resources
     OPEB related inflows 1,497$         -$               
     Pension related inflows 10,986         1,206          

Total deferred outflows of resources 12,483$       1,206$        

Net position:
     Net investment in capital assets 192,035$     188,121$    
     Restricted
        Debt service 16,102         20,741        
        Facility charges 10,847         10,600        
     Unrestricted (deficit) (116,744)     (116,514)     

Net position 102,240$     102,948$    
See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Virgin Islands Port Authority
(A Component Unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands)

Statements of Net Position
(In thousands of dollars)
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Years Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Operating revenues
Aviation 16,560$     24,652$     
Marine 24,265       29,693       

Total operating revenues 40,825       54,345       

Operating expenses
Payroll, payroll taxes, and fringe benefits 38,585       38,515       
Depreciation 16,285       21,049       
Materials, supplies, and other services 14,068       5,555        
Insurance 3,409         2,567        
Repairs and maintenance 3,881         2,728        
Other operating expenses 7,064         7,707        

Total operating expenses 83,292       78,121       

Operating loss (42,467)      (23,776)     

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Passenger facility charges 1,380         2,840        
Customer facility charges 315            485           
Interest income 244            297           
Interest expense (1,584)        (1,656)       
Financing expenses (113)           (83)            
Other non-operating expenses (1,467)        (32)            
Other non-operating revenues from the Government 395            –               

Total non-operating (expenses) revenues, net (830)           1,851        

Change in net position, before capital contributions and special item (43,297)      (21,925)     

Federal and state government capital contributions 9,726         9,944        
Insurance recoveries (impairment loss) on capital assets, net 56,225       (28,884)     

Change in net position 22,654       (40,865)     

Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported 102,948     143,813     

Change in accounting principle (see Note 1) (23,362)      –                

Net position, beginning of year, as restated 79,586       143,813     

Net position, end of year 102,240$   102,948$   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Virgin Islands Port Authority
(A Component Unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
(In thousands of dollars)
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Years Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers and others 37,921$     53,283$       
Cash paid to suppliers (24,741)      (15,701)       
Cash paid to employees (24,553)      (26,140)       

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (11,373)      11,442        

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (1,072)        (94)             
Interest received from investments 244            297             

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (828)           203             

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets (22,286)      (18,631)       
Proceeds from note payable 4,196         2,455          
Principal payments on bonds payable (2,445)        (2,330)         
Principal payments on note payable (4,178)        (2,494)         
Interest paid on bonds (2,223)        (2,359)         
Interest paid on notes (66)             (36)             
Cash received from U.S. Government and

local government agencies 6,983         10,823        
Passenger facility charges 1,380         2,840          
Customer facility charges 315            485             
Proceeds from insurance recovery 56,225       4,004          

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities 37,901       (5,243)         

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 25,700       6,402          

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 47,893       41,491        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 73,593$     47,893$       

Cash and cash equivalents 
Unrestricted and restricted cash and cash equivalents 61,334$     30,988$       
Cash and cash equivalents restricted in sinking funds 12,259       16,905        

73,593$     47,893$       
See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Virgin Islands Port Authority
(A Component Unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands)

Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands of dollars)
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Years Ended September 30, 2018 2017

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash 
(used in) provided by operating activities

Operating loss (42,467)$    (23,776)$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

(used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 16,285       21,049        
Deferred charges write-off 676            –                 
Provision for doubtful accounts 1,679         1,840          
Change in accounting principle (23,362)      –                 
Change in assets, deferred outflows of resources, 

   liabilities, and  deferred inflows of resources:
 Accounts receivable (2,904)        (1,062)         
 Prepaid insurance (884)           35               
 Other current assets 188            51               
 Deferred outflows of resources - pension related 11,089       (6,340)         
 Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 1,929         1,061          
 Compensated absences payable (248)           (120)            
 Net pension liability (8,153)        19,036        
 OPEB liability 23,522       –                 
 Deferred inflows of resources:
     Pension related 9,780         (332)            
     OPEB related 1,497         –                 

Total adjustments 31,094       35,218        

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (11,373)$    11,442$       

Noncash capital activities

Impairment loss on capital assets –$               32,888$       

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Virgin Islands Port Authority
(A Component Unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands)

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
(In thousands of dollars)
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1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting Entity  
 
The Virgin Islands Port Authority (the Authority) was created by Act 2375 of December 23, 1968, to 
operate as an autonomous agency. The Authority commenced operations on February 11, 1969, by 
virtue of Act 2405. The Authority owns and manages the air and marine terminals of the U.S. Virgin 
Islands. 
 
The Authority is a component unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands (the Government or 
GVI) and, therefore, the financial statements of the Authority are not intended to present fairly the 
financial position and results of operations of the Government. Only the accounts of the Authority 
are included in the reporting entity. There are no component units that should be considered for 
inclusion in the Authority’s financial statements. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The Authority complies with all applicable pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  The operations of the Authority are presented as an enterprise fund and 
as such, the financial statements are reported using the economic measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the period earned and 
expenses are recognized in the period incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 
 
Basic Financial Statements  
 
Standards for external financial reporting for state and local governments require that resources be 
classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net position categories and to report the 
changes in net position. Net position represents the residual interest in the Authority’s assets and 
deferred outflows after liabilities and deferred inflows are deducted and consist of the following 
categories:  
 

• Net investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
outstanding principal balances of debt and accounts payable attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets.  The portion of debt attributed to the unspent 
debt proceeds is included in the same net position component as the unspent proceeds.  
 

• Restricted: These result when constraints, on the use of net position, are either externally 
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted assets represent cash and cash 
equivalents segregated for (i) debt service requirements under the Authority’s bond 
agreements and standby line of credit; and (ii) facility charge funds required under the  
Authority’s passenger facility and customer facility charge agreements with the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) and car rental companies, respectively. 
 

• Unrestricted:  Net position that is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. 
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The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the Authority’s 
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority are charges to 
customers for fees, dues, and rent on each air and marine terminal 
 
Operating expenses for the Authority include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported 
as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s policy to 
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Authority considers non-negotiable certificates of deposit and highly-liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased, excluding those in sinking funds accounts, to be 
cash equivalents in the accompanying statements of net position. For purposes of the statements of 
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents also include the current portion of restricted balances 
deposited in the sinking funds.  
 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of Passenger Facility Charges and Customer Facility 
Charges deposited in interest bearing accounts. Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents may be used 
for operational purposes. 
 
Sinking Funds 
 
The Authority maintains amounts deposited in sinking funds that are restricted for specific uses in 
accordance with the corresponding bond indentures (see Note 6), mainly for construction and 
maintenance of airports and marine facilities.  The bond indentures also require the Authority to 
maintain certain balances to cover the bonds’ debt service reserves. The Authority is not permitted 
to use these funds for any other purpose.   
 
Investments  
 
Short-term investments, may consist of non-negotiable certificates of deposits and other highly 
liquid investments such as U.S. Government and agency securities with a maturity of greater than 
three months but not more than one year when purchased. All other highly liquid instruments, which 
are to be used for the long-term purposes of the Authority, are classified as long-term investments. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable are recorded at their gross value when earned and are reduced by the estimated 
portion that is expected to be uncollectible. The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts 
is evaluated by management based upon past collection experience and customers’ financial 
condition. 
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Capital Assets  
 
Land transferred from the Federal Government or from the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands is 
carried at the original cost if the information is available; if not, it is carried at amounts estimated 
by management to approximate cost at the time the properties were acquired. 
 
Depreciable assets transferred at inception by the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands are carried 
at amounts estimated based on total capital expenses incurred by predecessor agencies.  
Depreciation has been accumulated on such assets from the dates the predecessor agencies incurred 
the expenses and placed the assets in operation, based on their estimated average life.  All other 
capital assets are carried at cost.  
 
Capital expenses of $5,000 or more are capitalized. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets. Estimated useful lives of capital 
assets are as follows: 
 
  Years  
    
Buildings and structures  20 - 40  
Runways, aprons, and pavings  10  
Equipment  5 - 18  
Land and harbor improvements  10 - 20  
 
When assets are retired, the cost and related accumulated depreciation of the asset is removed 
from the accounts and any gain or loss is recognized as non-operating revenue or expense.  Expenses 
for major renewals and betterments are capitalized, while maintenance and repairs, which do not 
extend the life of the assets, are recorded as expenses.  No assets were retired during fiscal year 
2018. During fiscal year 2017, the Authority incurred an expense of $0.4 million due to retirement 
of certain assets. 
 
Interest on funds used to finance construction of qualifying projects is capitalized unless it has been 
funded with internally generated funds or government grants limited for use in such projects. 
Capitalized interest expense is reduced by interest income earned on related investments acquired 
with proceeds of tax-exempt borrowings. During 2018 and 2017, no interest expense was capitalized. 
 
The Authority reviews the carrying value of its capital assets to determine if circumstances exist 
indicating impairment. If facts or circumstances support the possibility of impairment, management 
follows the guidance in GASB Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment 
of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. If impairment is indicated, an adjustment is made 
to the carrying value of the capital assets. Also see Note 4. 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
 
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that time.  Deferred 
outflows of resources consist of (i) unrecognized items not yet charged to pension expense and 
contributions from the Authority after the measurement date but before the end of the Authority’s 
reporting period; and (ii) deferred charges on debt refunding.  
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Compensated Absences 
 
Unpaid vacation leave compensation, as well as the Authority’s share of related social security 
taxes, is accrued as benefits are earned by the employees if attributable to past services and if it 
is probable the Authority will compensate the employees for such benefits.  Amounts accrued are 
measured using salary rates in effect at September 30. 
 
Bond Issuance and Refunding 
 
Bonds and notes premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using 
the effective interest method and are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.    
 
When issuing new debt for refunding purposes, the difference between the reacquisition price of 
the new debt and the net carrying amount of the refunded debt is recognized as either a deferred 
outflow of resources or deferred inflow or resources and amortized using the straight-line method 
as a component of interest expense over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new 
debt, whichever is shorter. 
 
Net Pension Liability 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
related to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the pension 
plans, as well as additions to and deductions from the pension plan fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported in the financial statements of the Government 
Employees’ Retirement System of the U.S. Virgin Islands (GERS). Authority contributions are 
recognized when due and the Authority has a legal requirement to provide the contributions. Also 
see Note 10. 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability 
 
The Authority participates in the Government’s multiple employer OPEB plan. For purposes of 
measuring the total OPEB liability and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB 
expenses have been determined on the same basis as they are reported in the financial statements 
of the Government. Also see Note 11. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred 
outflows of resources consist of (i) unamortized portion of the net differences between projected 
and actual earnings on pension plan investments, changes in assumptions, change in proportionate 
share, and other differences between expected and actual experience; and (ii) unamortized portion 
of the other postemployment benefits changes in assumptions or other input.  
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Sources of Income 
 
The Authority derives most of its income from user fees and rental charges. These amounts are 
charged to the users of its airports, harbors, and terminal facilities at St. Thomas, St. Croix, and 
St. John and recorded as operating revenues.  The Authority is empowered by law to establish and 
charge the necessary fees and dues to permit the recovery of facility costs. Revenues are recognized 
when they are realized or realizable and are earned.  Revenues are realized when cash or claims to 
cash (receivable) are received in exchange for goods or services.   
 
Passenger Facility Charges  
 
The airlines that use the Authority’s airport facilities collect a Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) of 
up to $4.50 per passenger from travelers leaving the U.S. Virgin Islands from the Cyril E. King Airport 
(CEKA) and $3.00 from travelers leaving the U.S. Virgin Islands from the Henry E. Rohlsen Airport 
(HERA). As approved by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), the use of funds generated by 
the PFC is restricted for the construction of certain FAA approved capital projects. The PFCs, less 
an administrative fee charged by the airlines for processing, are collected by the airlines and 
remitted on a monthly basis to the Authority. The Authority recognizes the revenues when it 
receives the PFCs collected by the airlines. Due to their restricted use, PFCs are categorized as non-
operating revenues and are recorded as restricted net position until the funds are expended. Once 
funds generated by PFCs are used in the construction of the FAA approved projects, such amounts 
are reflected in net investment in capital assets. 
 
Customer Facility Charges  
 
Effective August 1, 2013, the Authority authorized a Customer Facility Charge (CFC) of $2.00 per 
transaction day per contract to be imposed for the rental of a vehicle from an on-airport rental car 
company located at Cyril E. King Airport. Funds received from CFCs shall be used for paying the 
Authority’s capital costs for construction and improvement of rental car facilities at the airport, 
including costs that support environmental sustainability or funding the Authority’s costs for such 
other rental car related purposes as the Authority determines, in joint consultation, with the airport 
rental car companies. The Authority recognizes the revenues when it receives the CFCs collected 
by the rental car companies. Due to their restricted use, CFCs are categorized as non-operating 
revenues and are recorded as restricted net position until the funds are expended. 
 
Grants and Contributions from Federal and State Government Grants 
 
The Authority receives Federal and state government grants mainly to support its capital 
construction program. The assets and revenues arising from government grants are recorded when 
the Authority meets the eligibility requirements. Grants for capital projects are reported as capital 
contributions. If resources are received in advance of satisfying certain eligibility requirements, the 
recognition of revenues is deferred. 
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Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
 
Adoption of Accounting Pronouncements 
 
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement improves accounting and financial 
reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions. It also 
improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support 
for OPEB that is provided by other entities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
the Authority’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2018. While restatement of 
all prior periods was not practical because information regarding the historical proportionate share 
of actuarial information to the Authority was not available, the impact of the implementation of 
the Statement is shown as a change in the beginning net position of fiscal year 2018 to reflect the 
beginning OPEB liability, deferred inflows of resources, and the recognition of OPEB expense 
between the start of the measurement period and the Authority’s prior fiscal year. Also see Note 
11. 
 
The following details the restatement to net position as a result of the adoption of GASB Statement 
No. 75. 

  
  
Net position, October 1 $  102,948 
Adoption of GASB Statement No. 75  (23,362)  
  
Net position, October 1, as restated $   79,586 
 
In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. This 
Statement improves accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by 
providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a 
beneficiary of the agreement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the Authority’s 
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2018. The Authority has evaluated this 
Statement and has determined there is no impact on the financial statements. 
 
In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. This Statement addresses practical 
issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.  
This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units, 
goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits.  The requirements 
of this Statement are effective for the Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 
September 30, 2018.  The Authority has evaluated this Statement and has determined there is no 
impact on the financial statements.  
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In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishments Issues. This 
Statement improves consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance 
of debt.  The Statement provides guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets 
acquired with existing resources are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of 
extinguishing debt. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the Authority’s financial 
statements for the year ended September 30, 2018. The Authority has evaluated this Statement and 
has determined there is no impact on the financial statements. 
 
Following are statements issued by GASB that are effective in future years. In light of the COVID-19 
pandemic, on May 8, 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates 
of Certain Authoritative Guidance, to provide relief to governments. This Statement, which was 
effective upon issuance, postpones the effective dates of certain provisions in these upcoming 
pronouncements for one year, except for GASB Statement No. 87 which is postponed for eighteen 
months.  
 

 
GASB 

Statement  
No.  

  

Adoption 
Effective in 
Fiscal Year 
(as Revised) 

     

83  Certain Asset Retirement Obligations  2020 

84  Fiduciary Activities  2021 

87  Leases  2022 

88  Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements 

 2020 

89  Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period  2022 

90  Majority Equity Interests – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61  2021 

91  Conduct Debt Obligations  2023 

92  Omnibus 2020  2022 

93  Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates  2022 

94  Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements  2023 

 

Certain provisions of GASB Statement No. 92 are excluded from GASB Statement No. 95. 
Additionally, GASB Statement No. 95 excludes provisions in GASB Statement No. 93 related to lease 
modifications and excludes GASB Statement No. 94 since the GASB considered the pandemic in 
determining effective dates. Earlier application of the standards is permitted to the extent specified 
in each pronouncement as originally issued. The Authority is currently evaluating the impact of these 
statements. 
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2. Deposits  
 
Deposits, segregated by category, are as follows at September 30, 2018: 
 

(In thousands of dollars) Cash Deposits 
Certificates 
of Deposits Total 

    
Cash and cash equivalents $  61,334 $            - 61,334 
Investments    - 13,049 13,049 
Sinking funds (restricted) 15,502 - 15,502 

    
 $  76,836 $  13,049 $  89,885 
 
Deposits, segregated by category, are as follows at September 30, 2017: 
 

(In thousands of dollars) Cash Deposits 
Certificates 
of Deposits Total 

    
Cash and cash equivalents $  29,987 $    1,001 $  30,988 
Investments    - 11,984 11,984 
Sinking funds (restricted) 20,141 - 20,141 

    
 $  50,128 $  12,985 $  63,113 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not 
be returned. The Authority does not have a custodial risk policy. The Authority maintains its deposits 
at several financial institutions, which, at times may exceed federally insured limits. Generally, the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insures depositor funds up to $250,000.   
 
At September 30, 2018 and 2017, the Authority held $90.0 million and $63.0 million, respectively, 
in uninsured deposits. The Authority has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes 
it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its deposits. 
 
As of September 30, 2018, approximately $62.9 million or 69.4% of the Authority’s deposits were 
held at Banco Popular. As of September 30, 2017, approximately $29.8 million or 46.5% of the 
Authority’s deposits were held at Banco Popular. 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
Fair value is defined by GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, as the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The Authority categorizes its fair value 
measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting 
principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the 
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 are significant unobservable inputs.  
 
As of September 30, 2018 and 2017, the Authority’s investments include non-negotiable certificates 
of deposits, which are not subject to the fair value hierarchy. 
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3. Sinking Funds  
 
Deposits in the reserve accounts at September 30, 2018, were as follows: 
 

(In thousands of dollars)  

   2014 Marine 
Revenue Series 
A,B & C Bonds 

      
Construction     $  12,241 
Debt service reserve     3,243 
Cost of issuance     5 
Interest     13 

      
     $  15,502 
 
Deposits in the reserve accounts at September 30, 2017, were as follows: 

 

(In thousands of dollars)  

   2014 Marine 
Revenue Series 
A,B & C Bonds 

      
Construction     $  16,458 
Debt service reserve     3,236 
Cost of issuance     5 
Interest     442 

      
     $  20,141 
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4. Capital Assets 

Capital assets as of September 30, 2018, are comprised as follows: 
 
 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Beginning      
Balance Increase 

 
Transfers 

Impairment/
Disposals 

Ending 
Balance 

      
Non-depreciable assets:        

Land $    23,772 $            - $            - $         - $  23,772 
Construction in progress 34,746 25,111 (31,566) (676) 27,615 

      
Total non-depreciable assets 58,518 25,111 (31,566) (676) 51,387 
      
Depreciable assets:      

Buildings and structures 272,606 73 8,800 - 281,479 
Runaways, aprons, and pavings 174,400 - 9,869 - 184,269 
Equipment 34,312 986 2,114 - 37,412 
Land and harbor improvements 30,316 102 10,783 - 41,201 

      
Total depreciable assets  511,634 1,161 31,566 - 544,361 
      
Accumulated depreciation for:      

Buildings and structures (178,600) (6,959) - - (185,559) 
Runaways, aprons, and pavings (137,700) (6,126) - - (143,826) 
Equipment (19,806) (2,574) - - (22,380) 
Land and harbor improvements (26,895) (626) - - (27,521) 
      

Total accumulated depreciation (363,001) (16,285) - - (379,286) 
      
Total capital assets being  
   depreciated, net 

 
148,633 

 
(15,124) 

 
31,566 

 
- 

 
165,075 

      
Total capital assets, net $  207,151 $    9,987 $          - $   (676) $  216,462 
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Capital assets as of September 30, 2017, are comprised as follows: 
 

 
On September 6 and 19, 2017, the United States Virgin Islands were struck by two Category 5 
hurricanes. The extent and severity of the storms was unprecedented and resulted in catastrophic 
damage to the Territory.  
 
Most of the Authority’s facilities are located on or near the coastline of the islands and as a result 
were subjected to the direct force of Category 5 winds, rains, and seawater. The Authority suffered 
losses to buildings, terminals, cruise ports, ferry and cargo facilities, and other commercial 
properties.  
 
The Cyril E. King Airport was the most damaged facility. Despite the damages, the Authority 
reopened the airport to limited commercial traffic on September 28, 2017, which enabled 
emergency personnel and supplies to arrive into the Territory. The Authority insures all of its 
properties and was able to secure advance funding for some of the needed repairs.  
 
  

 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Beginning      
Balance Increase 

 
Transfers 

Impairment/
Disposals 

Ending 
Balance 

      
Non-depreciable assets:      

Land $   23,772 $            - $             - $           - $    23,772 
Construction in progress 22,618 23,564 (11,072) (364) 34,746 

      
Total non-depreciable assets 46,390 23,564 (11,072) (364) 58,518 
      
Depreciable assets:      

Buildings and structures 326,687 - 3,269 (57,350) 272,606 
Runaways, aprons, and pavings 170,961 - 3,773 (334) 174,400 
Equipment 39,261 556 4,030 (9,535) 34,312 
Land and harbor improvements 30,863 - - (547) 30,316 

      
Total depreciable assets  567,772 556 11,072 (67,766) 511,634 
      
Accumulated depreciation for:      

Buildings and structures (198,558) (10,045) - 30,003 (178,600) 
Runaways, aprons, and pavings (131,087) (6,694) - 81 (137,700) 
Equipment (21,373) (3,397) - 4,964 (19,806) 
Land and harbor improvements (26,176) (913) - 194 (26,895) 
      

Total accumulated depreciation (377,194) (21,049) - 35,242 (363,001) 
      
Total capital assets being  
   depreciated, net 

 
190,578 

 
(20,493) 

 
11,072 

 
(32,524) 

 
148,633 

      
Total capital assets, net $  236,968 $    3,071 $              - $  (32,888) $  207,151 
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During the fiscal year 2017, the Authority evaluated its capital assets in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 42 and realized a loss from impairment of $32.9 million. The amount of the 
impairment loss for damaged capital assets is based on calculations using a combination of the 
restoration cost approach and the physical verification approach. Under the restoration cost 
approach, the amount of impairment is derived from the estimated costs to restore the utility of 
the capital asset. The estimated restoration cost can be converted to historical cost either by 
restating the estimated restoration cost using an appropriate cost index or by applying a ratio of 
the estimated restoration cost over estimated replacement cost to the carrying value of the capital 
asset. The Authority also conducted physical inspections of its assets to determine and estimate the 
extent of the damages. Assets fully depreciated prior to the hurricanes would have an impairment 
loss of $0, regardless of the damage. 
 
Actual repairs to damaged capital assets are expected to far exceed the calculated impairment 
losses. During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, insurance recoveries amounting to $56.2 million and $4.0 
million have been used to offset the impairment loss, in accordance with the guidelines of GASB 
Statement No. 42, resulting in a net insurance recoveries of $56.2 million and net impairment loss 
of $28.9 million, respectively. 
 
The Authority has active construction projects as of September 30, 2018. The projects include 
improvements to runways and aprons, buildings, structures, roads and equipment. At fiscal year 
end, the Authority had an estimated $25.8 million in contractual commitments for these 
construction projects. 
 
5. Note Payable 
 
In April 2018, the Authority obtained a short-term note for $3.5 million with interest at a 4.2% 
annual rate. This note has a 9-month maturity and is due in January 2019. This note was used to 
finance the Authority’s insurance premiums. The outstanding balance of $0.9 million as of 
September 30, 2018, was paid off in December 2018.  
 
In November 2017, the Authority obtained a short-term note for $0.6 million with interest at a 3.7% 
annual rate and 9-month maturity. This note was used to finance the Authority’s insurance premiums 
and was paid off in June 2018. 
 
In April 2017, the Authority obtained a short-term note for $1.8 million with interest at a 3.18% 
annual rate. This note has a 9-month maturity and is due in January 2018. This note was used to 
finance the Authority’s insurance premiums. The outstanding balance of $0.9 million as of 
September 30, 2017, was paid off in December 2017. 
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6. Long-term Liabilities 
 
Revenue Bonds 
 
On January 16, 2003, the Authority issued Marine Revenue Bonds Series 2003A (AMT) and 2003B 
(Federally taxable), with principal amounting to approximately $18.0 million and $17.4 million, 
respectively. On October 20, 2003, the Authority issued Marine Revenue Bonds Series 2003C (Non-
AMT), with an authorized principal amount not to exceed approximately $10.8 million. 
 
In October 2014, the Authority issued three series of 2014 Series Marine Revenue Bonds A, B & C 
amounting to $48.6 million, with an average interest rate of 4.70%. A portion of the proceeds was 
used to refund the outstanding bond series 2003 A and C amounting to $24.5 million, which included 
accrued interest as of the redemption date for October 27, 2014. The proceeds from the issuance 
of the 2014 Series used in the refunding were deposited in an escrow account, held by the Trustee 
on behalf of the holders of the refunded bonds, and applied to such redemption contemporaneously 
with the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds. As a result, the 2003 A & C Bonds were paid off and 
were removed from the Authority’s books. The 2003 Series B Marine Revenue Bonds were paid off 
using the Marine Division’s surplus funds. As a result of the refunding, the Authority reduced its 
total debt service requirement by $1.7 million, which resulted in an economic gain (difference 
between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $2.4 million. 
In addition, the Authority recognized a deferred charge on debt refunding amounting to $0.4 million.  
 
The remaining proceeds of the 2014 Bonds, together with certain other available funds of the 
Authority, will be used for: (i) for the financing of various capital projects; (ii) to fund a deposit to 
the debt service fund; (iii) to fund a deposit to the operation, maintenance, renewal and 
replacement reserve account; and (iv) to pay the cost of issuance of the 2014 Bonds.   
 
At September 30, 2018 and 2017, bonds payable consist of: 
 
(In thousands of dollars)  2018  2017  
      
Marine Division:      

2014 Marine Revenue Bonds, $28,765 Series A; due serially   
from September 1, 2015 through September 1, 2033, 
bearing interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%  $  23,025    $  24,925  

2014 Marine Revenue Bonds, $14,900 Series B; due serially   
from September 1, 2015 through September 1, 2044, 
bearing interest ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%  12,820  13,365  

2014 Marine Revenue Bonds, $4,920 Series C; due serially   
from September 1, 2015 through September 1, 2025, 
bearing interest ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%  3,920  3,920  

  39,765  42,210  
      
Debt premium  2,517  3,146  
Less current portion of long-term debt  (2,565)  (2,445)  
      
  $  39,717  $  42,911  
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The aggregate debt service requirements of bonds payable, in thousands of dollars, at September 
30 are as follows: 
 
Year Ending September 30,  Principal  Interest  Total  
        
2019   $    2,565  $    1,988  $    4,553  
2020   2,695  1,860  4,555  
2021  2,835  1,725  4,560  
2022  2,980  1,584  4,564  
2023  3,065  1,435  4,500  
2024 through 2044  25,625  11,194  36,819  
 
  $  39,765  $  19,786  $  59,551   
 
The Marine Revenue Bonds do not constitute general obligations of the Government of the U.S. 
Virgin Islands or the United States of America.  Neither the credit of the Government of the U.S. 
Virgin Islands nor that of its political subdivisions is pledged or available for the payment of principal 
or interest on the bonds. The Marine Revenue Bonds represent a special limited obligation of the 
Authority and are payable and secured solely by a pledge of the Authority’s net marine revenues, 
the Authority’s right to receive net marine revenues and additional funds and accounts, as defined 
in the bonds’ indentures.  
 
The bonds’ indentures contain certain account restrictions and funding covenants to cover interest, 
debt service, maintenance and other costs specified in the corresponding indentures. Management 
believes that the Authority has established the aforementioned required accounts and has complied 
with the contribution requirements with respect to the bonds. In addition, it is management’s 
opinion that the Authority has complied with limitations and restrictions imposed by the indentures. 
 
The bonds’ indentures also specify certain debt service coverage requirements determined from Net 
Available Revenues (as defined) of the Authority’s Marine Division. The provisions of each of the 
bonds’ indentures require that rates and fees charged for the use of each facility generate enough 
revenues to pay all operation and maintenance expenses, exclusive of depreciation and certain non-
cash charges, of the respective facilities plus (i) at least 125% of the principal and interest, and 
redemption account sinking fund deposit requirements of each of the bonds becoming due during 
such year; (ii) the amount of the debt service reserve fund deposit requirement for such period; (iii) 
the deposit required to the Renewal and Replacement Fund; and (iv) the amount of the capital 
improvements appropriation for such period.   
 
As a result of the disruption to the Authority’s operations from Hurricanes Irma and Maria, for fiscal 
year 2018, the Authority did not comply with the requirement to issue the audited financial 
statements within 270 days after year-end. However, as per the Authority’s bonds’ indentures, this 
noncompliance event does not constitute an event of default. The Authority filed the required 
failure to file notice to the Repository before the annual filing date. 
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Claims payable 
 
In June 2018, the FAA issued a $1.5 million civil penalty against the Authority for the alleged 
violations of airport safety regulations at CEKA and HERA. In fiscal year 2018, the Authority recorded 
the $1.5 million penalty as non-operating expenses in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position and recorded a long-term liability in the Statements of Net Position.  
 
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2018, follows: 
 

(In thousands of dollars) 
   Beginning 
    Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Due Within 
One Year 

      

2014 Marine Revenue 
Bonds Series A $  24,925 $          - $  (1,900) $  23,025 $  2,000 

2014 Marine Revenue 
Bonds Series B 13,365 - (545) 12,820 565 

2014 Marine Revenue 
Bonds Series C 3,920 - - 3,920 - 

Debt premium  3,146 - (629) 2,517 - 
Compensated absences 

payable 2,382 758 (1,006) 2,134 982 
Claims payable - 1,467 - 1,467 - 
 
 $  47,738 $  2,225 $  (4,080) $  45,883 $  3,547 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2017, follows: 
 

(In thousands of dollars) 
   Beginning 
    Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Due Within 
One Year 

      

2014 Marine Revenue 
Bonds Series A $  26,740 $         - $  (1,815) $  24,925 $  1,900 

2014 Marine Revenue 
Bonds Series B 13,880 - (515) 13,365 545 

2014 Marine Revenue 
Bonds Series C 3,920 - - 3,920 - 

Debt premium  3,840 - (694) 3,146 - 
Compensated absences 

payable 2,502 853 (973) 2,382 1,006 
 
 $  50,882 $    853 $  (3,997) $  47,738 $  3,451 
 
 
  



Virgin Islands Port Authority 
(A Component Unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands) 

 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

36 

7. User Agreements 
 
User rates for the Aviation Division are reviewed semi-annually in consultation with the Authority’s 
independent rate consultants and are set by tariff.  Effective August 1, 2016, the Authority adjusted 
its aviation rates for its General Aviation operations. The Authority is currently working towards a 
new Use and Lease agreement with its major airline customers.  
 
The Authority and WICO signed a single tariff agreement of $13.40 per passenger effective October 
1, 2016, for all cruise ship passengers coming to the ports of St. Thomas and St. John. Additionally, 
the Authority signed a new berthing agreement with one of the major cruise ship carriers coming to 
the Territory with a tariff increase effective October 1, 2016, for both the St. Thomas/St. John 
ports and the St. Croix port.  
 
8. Contributions to/from the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands 
 
In June 2002, the Authority contributed $4.0 million to the Government.  The Authority agreed to 
make such contribution to receive in return $18.5 million from the Virgin Islands Public Finance 
Authority (VIPFA), another component unit of the Government, in future years. The funds to be 
received will be used in the development of two capital projects of the Marine Division. The 
Authority will receive the funds on a reimbursement basis as allowable costs are incurred.  In order 
to be entitled to receive such funds, the projects must meet the requirements of Federal agencies 
and the Authority is obligated to spend the grant monies in accordance with the regulatory 
restrictions. These amounts were recorded as state government capital contributions in the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. As of September 30, 2018 and 2017, 
the Authority has an outstanding receivable balance of $0.1 million from the VIPFA.   
 
In 2017, the Authority received $1.0 million from the Government’s St. Croix Capital Improvement 
Fund to be used as matching funds to acquire federal funds under the Transportation Investment 
Generating Economic Recovery Grant Award (TIGER) for the St. Croix Molasses Pier Enhancement 
Project (the Project). As of September 30, 2018, the Authority has not yet started the Project. 
Hence, the amounts received are reflected as unearned revenues in the accompanying Statements 
of Net Position. 
 
9. Related Party Transactions 
 
During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, another enterprise fund of the 
Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands charged the Authority approximately $4.8 million and $5.1 
million, respectively, for utility services rendered.  Charges for such services are recurring and are 
included in the Authority’s operating expenses. In addition, the enterprise fund paid the Authority 
$0.2 million and $0.3 million for 2018 and 2017, respectively, related to office rental fees. 
  
During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, the Authority paid to the Department of Planning and Natural 
Resources (DPNR), an agency of the Government, certain fees for submerged land rentals and 
permits of approximately $0.2 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Additionally, DPNR paid the 
Authority $0.5 million in 2018 and 2017, related to office rental fees.  
 
Further, the Authority has also leased several properties to various additional agencies of the 
Government and received $0.5 million and $0.6 million in revenue from these units in fiscal years 
2018 and 2017, respectively.  
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10. Pension Plan 
 
Following is a description of the pension plan and accounting for pension expense, liabilities, and 
deferred outflows/inflows of resources. As required, the Authority follows the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 27, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions 
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 and GASB 
Statement No. 82, Pension Issues – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73.   
 
Plan Description and Benefits 
 
Full time employees of the Authority are members of the Government Employees’ Retirement 
System of the U.S. Virgin Islands (GERS), a cost sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension 
plan (the plan) established as of October 1, 1959 Title 3, Chapter 27 of the V.I. Code to provide 
retirement, death, and disability benefits. Benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of plan 
members. The plan covers all employees of the Authority except employees compensated on a 
contract fee basis, casual, per diem or provisional and part time employees who work less than 
twenty (20) hours per week. Persons over the age of fifty-five (55) may opt out of the plan by 
providing formal notification to the plan. Vesting of benefits occurs after ten (10) years of service. 
Benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of plan members.  
 
There are two tiers within the plan: 
 

 Tier I:   Employees hired prior to September 30, 2005 
 Tier II:  Employees hired on or after October 1, 2005 
 
Regular Tier I employees who have completed thirty (30) years of credited service or have attained 
age sixty (60) with at least ten (10) years of credited service are eligible for a full-service retirement 
annuity. Regular Tier II employees who have attained age sixty-five (65) with at least ten (10) years 
of service are eligible for a full-service retirement annuity. Members who are considered "safety 
employees " as defined in the Code are eligible for full-service retirement benefits under Tier I when 
they have earned at least twenty (20) years of government service or have reached the age of fifty-
five (55) with at least ten (10) years of credited service. Under Tier II, safety employees are eligible 
for full retirement when they have earned at least twenty-five (25) years of government service and 
have reached age fifty-eight (58) or have reached age (60) with at least ten (10) years of service. 
 
The monthly annuity benefit payment is determined by applying a stipulated benefit ratio to the 
member’s average compensation. Average compensation for regular and safety Tier I members is 
determined by averaging the five highest years of credited service within the last ten years of 
service, subject to the maximum salary limitations in effect during such service. Average 
compensation for regular and safety Tier II members is based on career average salary, subject to 
the maximum salary limitations in effect during the service. The maximum annual salary that can 
be used in this computation is $65,000. 
 
In 1995, the Early Retirement Incentive Training and Promotion Act was amended by the Legislature 
to allow a member with a combined aggregate number of years of service and age of at least 
seventy-five (75) years to retire without a reduction in their annuity. Early retirement benefits 
provided under the Act vary depending upon age of retirement, type of employment, and credited 
years of service.  
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GERS is a separate and independent agency that is included for financial reporting purposes as a 
blended pension trust fund of the Government. GERS issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained 
by writing to the Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of the Virgin Islands, 3438 
Kronprindsens Gade, St. Thomas, Virgin Islands 00802.  
 
Funding and Contribution Policy 
 
Contributions to GERS are established by the Board of Trustees of GERS. The Government’s required 
employer contribution for Tier I and Tier II members effective January 1, 2015, was 20.50% of the 
member’s annual salary. 
 
Employee contribution rates (as a percentage of payroll) for fiscal years 2018 and 2017 were as 
follows: 
  
      Tier 1  Tier 2 
Regular Employees     11.0%  11.5% 
Public Safety Employees    13.0%  13.625% 
 
Prior to June 29, 2000, member contributions were refundable without interest upon withdrawal 
from employment before retirement. Effective July 1, 2009, GERS’ Board of Trustees approved an 
effective annual interest rate on refunded contributions of 2.00% per annum. 
 
Both the plan and the Authority have a September fiscal year end. GASB Statement No. 68 requires 
that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain defined time 
frames. For this report, the following time frames are used: 
 
September 30,   2018  2017  
      
Valuation Date  October 1, 2017  October 1, 2016  
 
Measurement Date  September 30, 2017  September 30, 2016  

Measurement Period  

 
October 1, 2016 - 

September 30, 2017  
October 1, 2015 - 

September 30, 2016  
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The Authority is considered an employer of the plan with a proportionate share of 3.3788% as of 
September 30, 2018, which was an increase of 0.0036% from its proportionate share measured at 
September 30, 2017. At September 30, 2017, the Authority’s proportionate share was 3.3752%, 
which was an increase of 0.0075% from its proportionate share measured as of September 30, 2016. 
The Authority’s percentage was estimated by management based on the average of each employer’s 
contributions during the period October 1, 2013 through September 30, 2017. The Authority’s 
proportionate share of employer contributions recognized by GERS was $2.5 million for each of the 
plan’s fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  
 
Pension Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources  
 
As of September 30, 2018 and 2017, the actuarial calculated net pension liability for the Authority’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability of the plan was $148.0 million and $156.2 million, 
respectively. The net pension liability of the plan is measured as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, 
and the total pension liability for the plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
For the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, the Authority recognized pension expense of 
$12.7 million and $12.4 million, respectively, inclusive of amortization of deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows of pension related items.   
 
Following is a schedule of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources allocated 
to the Authority in the computation of the net pension liability for the year ended September 30, 
2018: 
 
 
 (In thousands of dollars) 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

   

Changes in assumptions $  24,410 $  10,474 
Net difference between projected and   
    actual earnings on pension plan investments 840 - 
Difference between expected and actual experience 4,478 - 
Changes in proportionate share 5,387 512 
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 2,695 - 
   
 $  37,810   $  10,986 
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Following is a schedule of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources allocated 
to the Authority in the computation of the net pension liability for the year ended September 30, 
2017: 
 
 
 (In thousands of dollars) 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

   

Changes in assumptions $  32,213 $          - 
Net difference between projected and   
    actual earnings on pension plan investments 1,879 181 
Difference between expected and actual experience 4,913 - 
Changes in proportionate share 7,006 1,025 
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 2,888 - 
   
 $  48,899   $  1,206 
 
The amount reported for contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $2.7 million will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2019. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows, exclusive of contributions made after the 
measurement date, will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 
Year Ending September 30, (In thousands of dollars) 
  

2019 $   8,402 
2020 8,232 
2021 7,527 
2022 1,077 
2023 1,153 
Thereafter (2,262) 
  
 $  24,129 
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Actuarial Assumptions 
 
A summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate the total pension liability as 
of the measurement dates at September 30, 2017 and 2016 is provided below, including any 
assumptions that differ from those used in the corresponding October 1, 2017 and 2016 actuarial 
valuations. Refer to the October 1, 2017 and 2016 actuarial valuation reports for a complete 
description of all other assumptions, which can be found on GERS’ website.  
 
September 30,   2017  2016  
      
Inflation Rate  2.50%  2.50%  
Salary Increases  3.25% including inflation  3.25% including inflation  
Actuarial Cost Method  Entry age normal  Entry age normal  
Expected Rate of Return  7.00%  7.00%  
Municipal Bond Yield  3.64%  3.06%  
Discount Rate  3.74%  3.20%  
Mortality Table  RP-2014 Blue Collar  RP-2014 Blue Collar  
 
The demographic assumptions for the 2017 and 2016 actuarial valuations are based on the results 
of an actuarial experience study for the period October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2015. 
 
Investment Rate of Return 
 
The long-term expected rates of return of 7.00% for the years ended 2017 and 2016, respectively, 
on plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges 
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, 
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  
 
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the plan’s 
target asset allocation, as of the measurement date at September 30, 2017, are summarized below: 
 

 
Asset Class 

Target 
Allocation 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

Domestic equity 
 

29% 
 

6.21% 
International equity 12% 7.21% 
Fixed income 27% 1.56% 
Cash 2% 0.91% 
Alternatives 30% 5.50% 
   
 100%  
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Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the plan’s 
target asset allocation as of the measurement date at September 30, 2016, are summarized below: 
 

 
Asset Class 

Target 
Allocation 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

Domestic equity 
 

29% 
 

6.59% 
International equity 12% 8.29% 
Fixed income 27% 1.59% 
Cash 2% 0.99% 
Alternatives 30% 5.50% 
   
 100%  
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.74% as of the measurement date 
at September 30, 2017 and 3.20% as of the measurement date at September 30, 2016. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan member contributions will be made 
at the current contribution rate, including the future increases in the employee contribution rates 
legislated. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was not projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  
 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments of 7.00% was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments that are covered by projected assets. For periods where 
projected future benefit payments are not covered by projected assets, the yield on a 20-year AA 
Municipal Bond Index was applied, which was 3.64% and 3.06% as of the measurement date at 
September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
Sensitivity of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) for the 
plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher 
than the current rate for the year ended September 30, 2018: 
 

1% Decrease -  
Share of 

NPL @ 2.74% 
Share of  

NPL @ 3.74% 

1% Increase – 
Share of 

NPL @ 4.74% 
 

$  171,705,034 
   

$  148,004,574 
 

$  128,448,667 
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The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) for the 
plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.0% lower or 1.0% 
higher than the current rate for the year ended September 30, 2017: 
 

1% Decrease -  
Share of 

NPL @ 2.20% 
Share of  

NPL @ 3.20% 

1% Increase – 
Share of 

NPL @ 4.20% 
 

$  182,611,264 
   

$  156,157,881 
 

$  134,454,669 
 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued GERS financial report. 
 
11. Other Postemployment Benefits 
 
Plan Description and Benefits 

In addition to the pension benefits described above, the Government provides other 
postemployment benefits (OPEB) of healthcare, prescription, dental and life insurance coverage. 
These benefits are provided in accordance with Title 3, Chapter 25, Subchapter VIII of the V.I. Code 
as part of a multiple employer defined benefit OPEB plan, in which the Authority participates. All 
employees who retire from government service after attaining age fifty-five (55) with at least thirty 
(30) years of service, except for policemen and firemen who can retire with at least twenty (20) 
years of service, are eligible for these benefits. 
 
Healthcare, prescription, and dental insurance is provided through negotiated contracts with private 
insurance companies. Participants in the plan may elect coverage for their spouses and dependent 
children. Participants are required to contribute 35% of medical, prescription, and dental premiums.  
 
During the year ended September 30, 2018, the Authority implemented the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. This standard requires the reporting and disclosure of costs and liabilities associated with 
postemployment benefits provided to retirees of the Authority. 
 
Employees Covered by the Plan 

As of the valuation date of October 1, 2017, the following Authority current and former employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 
 
  
Active employees    341 
Service retiree employees 69 
Disability retirees 2 
  
Total 412 
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Contributions 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Government are legislated within the V.I. 
Code, and may be amended, by the Virgin Islands Legislature. Payments made by the Government 
for the Authority do not qualify as a special funding situation. The Authority recognized $394,768 
of non-operating revenue related to the cost paid by the Government for the Authority’s retirees. 
The plan is a non-trusted pay-as-you-go plan, no assets have been accumulated in a trust that meets 
the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, and expenses are paid as they become due.  
 
OPEB Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

At September 30, 2018, the Authority reported a total OPEB liability for its proportionate share of 
2.83% as of the measurement date of October 1, 2017, which was an increase of .08% from its 
proportionate share measured as of October 1, 2016. The proportionate share is determined based 
on the respective census data. The Authority’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability as of 
September 30, 2018 amounted to $23.1 million. 
 
The Authority recognized expense of $1.7 million, inclusive of amortization of deferred inflows of 
OPEB related items for the year ended September 30, 2018. At September 30, 2018, the Authority 
reported $1.5 million of deferred inflows of resources related to changes in assumptions or other 
input. 
 
The amounts of the Authority’s balances of deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ending September 30, (In thousands of dollars) 
  

2019 $     277 
2020 277 
2021 277 
2022 277 
2023 277 
Thereafter 112 
  
 $  1,497 
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Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The other postemployment benefits plan is an unfunded plan.  An actuarial valuation was conducted 
of the amount required to fund the plan, involving assumptions about the probability of the 
occurrence of events in the future. Actuarial assumptions used in the computation of the total OPEB 
liability are as follows: 
 
Valuation date:   October 1, 2017 
 
Measurement date:   October 1, 2017 
 
Report date:    September 30, 2018 
 
Actuarial cost method:   Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
 
Amortization method:   Recognition Period of 6 Years 
 
Salary increases:   Payroll Growth of 3.25% per year 
 
Discount rate:    Beginning of Year Rate of 2.89% 
     End of Year Rate of 3.35%  S&P Municipal Bond 
     20-Year High Grade Rate Index as of September 30, 2017 
 
Healthcare cost trend rates:  Pre-Medicare Increases of 7.00% in 2018 to 4.50% in 2023 
     Medicare Increases of 5.50% in 2018 to 4.50% in 2023 
     Dental Increases of 5.50% in 2018 to 4.50% in 2023 
 
Inflation:    2.25% Implicit Rate in Healthcare Trend Analysis 
 
Retirees share of costs:  35% of Medical and Dental Premiums and Noncontributory 
     Life Insurance Coverage 
 
Mortality:    RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality Generational Table 
     Adjusted 110% with Scale MP-2015 for Healthy Lives 
     For Disability Retirees, RP-2014 Disabled Mortality 
     Generational Table Adjusted 125% with Scale MP-2015 
 
Marital status:    Assumed 50% of Future Male Retirees and 25% of 
     Future Female Retirees Cover Spouses in Retirement 
     Husbands Assumed to be 3 Years Older Than Spouse 
     Subsidized Coverage of Spouses and Dependents Ceases 
     Upon Death 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the October 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period October 1, 2014 – September 30, 2015. 
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Changes in Assumptions 

• The discount rate changed from 2.50% in the prior valuation to 2.89% and 3.35% as of 
September 30, 2016 and 2017, respectively. 

• The base mortality tables and mortality improvement sales were updated to RP-2014 Blue 
Collar Mortality table (110% adjustment) projected forward using the M-2015 scale. 

• Future participation in the retiree health plan decreased from 100% to 85%. 
 
Sensitivity of OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate  
 
The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact to the total OPEB Liability if the discount rate 
was 1% lower or 1% higher than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease -  
Discount Rate  

@ 2.35% 

Current  
Discount Rate  

@ 3.35% 

1% Increase – 
Discount Rate 

 @ 4.35% 
 

$  27,236,282 
   

$  23,127,637 
 

$  19,842,787 
 
Sensitivity of OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
 
The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact to the total OPEB liability if the healthcare cost 
trend rates were 1% lower or 1% higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 
 

1% Decrease -  
Healthcare Trend 

Rate @ 6.00% 

Current  
Healthcare Trend 

Rate @ 7.00% 

1% Increase – 
Healthcare Trend  

Rate @ 8.00% 
 

$  19,349,398 
   

$  23,127,637 
 

$  28,034,127 
 
12. Risk Management 
 
The Authority is exposed to various risks of losses, including torts; thefts of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
Authority obtains, among other coverages, over $100.0 million in liability coverage for airport 
operators and owners and over $50.0 million for automobile and general liability claims at the 
marinas and other Authority properties off the airport premises.  The Authority also carries a blanket 
special perils, replacement cost, property insurance policy with a loss limit of $60.0 million, with a 
sublimit of $40.0 million for flood and earthquake.  The property policy is subject to a deductible 
of $100,000 for all perils except, 5.00% of the total insured value for named windstorm and 2.00% 
of the insured value for earthquake (capped at various levels).  Other sub-limits and deductibles 
that are part of the Property program vary.  The Authority is also covered by separate policies for 
acts of terrorism. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from prior years. 
 
Claims expenses and liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has occurred in excess 
of insured amounts and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Settled claims resulting 
from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.  
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However, for the year ended September 30, 2018, the Authority remains in negotiation with 
insurance companies regarding claims filed resulting from the damages caused by Hurricanes Irma 
and Maria.  
 
13. Contingencies 
 
Litigation 
 
During the normal course of business, the Authority is a defendant in various lawsuits. In the opinion 
of management and legal counsel, the outcome of these cases and resulting liability, if any, is either 
adequately covered by insurance or should not materially affect the Authority’s financial position.   
 
Grant Funds 
 
In connection with Federal and state government grant programs, the Authority is obligated to 
administer and spend the grant monies in accordance with regulatory restrictions, and is subject to 
audit by the grantor agencies.  In cases of non-compliance, the agencies involved may require the 
Authority to refund program monies.  Management believes these non-compliance instances, if any, 
should not materially affect the Authority’s financial position. 
 
St. Croix Municipal Landfill at Estate Anguilla 
 
The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) conducted an onsite wildlife evaluation of the landfill, 
airport, and surrounding area of the Anguilla Landfill at St. Croix.  The landfill, that is adjacent to 
the St. Croix airport (Henry E. Rohlsen), caused environmental and navigational problems to the 
airport. The landfill attracts flocks of birds and there have been plane crashes elsewhere when birds 
have flown into jet engines. The FAA was threatening to force the Authority, to repay $9.3 million 
in grants previously awarded and to refuse further grants for the airport unless the Authority and 
the Government showed rapid progress toward closing the landfill. The matter was mitigated in 
fiscal year 2013 and the Authority is eligible for all grants. 
 
The landfill is under the jurisdiction of another agency of the Government, the Virgin Islands Waste 
Management Authority (VIWMA). Thus, the Government and the Authority proposed a Compliance 
Plan which has been accepted by the FAA. Under the Compliance Plan, both VIWMA and the 
Authority are jointly responsible for maintenance of the surrounding areas to reduce the risk that 
flocks of birds could cause a plane crash and repossess adjacent miscellaneous properties. 
 
14. Operating Lease Agreements 
 
The Authority leases several properties within its Aviation and Marine Divisions to outside users 
under the terms of numerous lease agreements. Leased facilities within the Aviation Division include 
warehouse areas at the airports, counter space within the terminals, and retail space for terminal 
concessionaires. The Marine Division leases warehouse and commercial and office space within the 
Crown Bay pier area to outside users as well. 
 
The lease agreements include contracts with non-cancelable terms for both fixed and variable rental 
charges.  The agreements expire at various dates through 2022.  During fiscal year 2018 and 2017, 
the Authority generated revenues of $11.3 million and $11.8 million, respectively, through the 
leasing arrangements.  Revenue for 2018 has been impacted by rent abatements in the amount of 
$1.7 million provided to tenants as a result of damages incurred from Hurricanes Irma and Maria. 
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Future estimated minimum fixed rentals under the non-cancelable lease agreements and month-to-
month agreements, in thousands of dollars, follow: 
 
Year Ending September 30,                
    
2019  $    9,739  
2020  10,251  
2021  10,218  
2022  10,341  
2023  10,215  
    
  $  50,764  
 
15. Credit Concentration 
 
The Authority’s revenues are dependent on a small group of air-carriers and shipping lines. Its 
revenues are particularly affected by demand fluctuations affecting the tourism industry, in 
particular tourism from the east coast of the United States.   
 
In fiscal years 2018 and 2017, the following customers provided more than 10.0% of the respective 
Division’s total operating revenues: 
 

  Division  2018  2017  
        
Royal Caribbean Cruise Line  Marine  23.3%  23.6%  
American Airlines  Aviation  18.8%  22.2%  
Tropical Shipping  Marine  10.0%      -  
Delta Airlines  Aviation  -  11.2%  
Carnival Cruise Line  Marine  -  9.4%  
 
16. Subsequent Events 
 
Natural Disasters – Hurricanes Irma and Maria  
 
The Authority is making significant progress towards restoring its facilities which were damaged by 
Hurricanes Irma and Maria in September 2017.  Rebuilding the Authority’s air and seaports has taken 
precedence over other activities and the Authority continues to tabulate the associated costs and 
expenses with respect to remediation, mitigation, and the restoration of services. 
 
Subsequent to year end, the Authority received a reimbursement of $0.3 million as part of the 
Territory’s FEMA disaster recovery grant. Additionally, the Authority has received approximately 
$20.0 million in connection with its insurance claims related to the damages incurred.  
 
In an effort to close potential shortfalls and to serve returning citizens, the Authority continues to 
work closely with Federal agencies, such as FEMA and the FAA, to maximize its recovery from all 
available sources, subject to any sublimits and retentions. While inflows of Federal and private 
funds continue to bolster the reconstruction activity, the eventual amount and timing for receipt of 
such funds cannot be predicted at this time.  
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Further, as a result of the disruption to the Authority’s operations from the hurricanes, for fiscal 
year 2019, the Authority did not comply with the requirement to issue the audited financial 
statements within 270 days after year-end. However, as per the Authority’s bonds’ indentures, this 
noncompliance event does not constitute an event of default. The Authority filed the required 
failure to file notice to the Repository before the annual filing date. 
 
Agreements and Contingencies 
 
In January 2019, new fees pursuant to the airline use and lease agreement were instituted and the 
Authority and its airline partners are working towards the full execution of this agreement. 
 
In April 2019, in a case filed against the United States CBP for the recovery of wharfage and tonnage, 
a summary judgement was issued in favor of the United States CBP. As such, no revenue is expected 
to be recovered. 
 
In March 2020, the Authority signed a settlement agreement with FAA and agreed to remit payment 
of a $1.5 million civil penalty in four installments. The first installment of $0.4 million was paid in 
March 2020. However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the other installment payments have been 
deferred.  
 
Global Pandemic  
 
In March 2020, the Governor of the U.S. Virgin Islands declared a state of emergency due to the 
coronavirus pandemic known as COVID-19.  The state of emergency was approved by the President 
of the United States under the provisions of the Stafford Act and the National Emergencies Act.  A 
federally approved state of emergency activates federal assistance to states in the form of financial, 
logistical, and technical assistance. The state of emergency also activates other emergency response 
protocols and systems to protect citizenry such as stay-at-home orders, travel restrictions, and 
social distancing requirements.  
 
The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the operational and financial performance of the Authority 
will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak. Prolonged 
travel and social gathering restrictions could negatively impact the fiscal outlook for the Authority’s 
vendors and customers due to business disruptions and increased unemployment. The Authority may 
also experience revenue volatility from cruise lines and airlines which have announced reduction in 
operations. Although the Authority cannot estimate the length or gravity of the impact of the COVID-
19 outbreak at this time, if the pandemic continues, it may have an adverse effect on the Authority’s 
results of future operations, financial position, and liquidity. 
 
Economic Relief Legislation   
 
Also, in March 2020, the President of the United States signed into law the “Coronavirus Aid, Relief, 
and Economic Security (CARES) Act.” The CARES Act, among other things, appropriated funds for 
the Coronavirus Relief Fund to be used to make payments for specified uses to state, territorial, 
local, and tribal governments. 
 
In April 2020, the Authority executed a CARES Act grant with the FAA for a total of $38.9 million. 
The Authority continues to examine the impact that the CARES Act may have on its operations.  
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Management’s Evaluation 

Management has evaluated any events or transactions occurring after September 30, 2018, the 
statement of net position date, through June 30, 2020, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued, and noted that there have been no additional events or transactions which 
would require adjustments to or disclosure in the Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 
September 30, 2018. 
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Year ended 
September 

30, 

 
 

Measurement 
period ended 
October 1, 

Authority’s 
proportion 
of the total 

OPEB 
liability 

Authority’s 
proportionate 
share of the 
total OPEB 

liability 

 
 

Total 
OPEB 

liability 

 
 

Authority’s 
covered 
payroll 

Total OPEB 
liability as a 

percentage of 
the Authority’s 
covered payroll 

 
2018 

 
2017 

 
2.83% 

 
$  23,127,637 

 
$  23,127,637 

 
$  16,073,616 

 
144% 

Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of GASB Statement No. 75 implementation, therefore, information was not available for a full 
10-year presentation. Additional years will be reported as they become available. The amounts presented for the fiscal year is as 
of the measurement date (September 30 of the previous year). 

Note to Required Supplementary Information – OPEB: 
 
The discount rate changed from 2.89% for the opening balance as of September 30, 2017, to the discount rate of 
3.35% as of September 30, 2018.  This change resulted in a decrease in total OPEB liability. 
 
The base mortality tables and mortality improvement sales were update to RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality table (110% 
adjustment) projected forward using the M-2015 scale.  
 
Future participation in the retiree health plan decreased from 100% to 85%. 
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September 30, 2018 2017 2016 2015 
     
Authority’s proportion of the net  
  pension liability 

 
3.3788% 

 
3.3752% 

 
3.3677% 

 
3.0233% 

     
Authority’s proportionate share of the  
  net pension liability 

 
$ 148,004,574 

 
$ 156,157,881 

 
$  137,122,496 

 
$  93,299,583 

     
Authority’s covered payroll $   12,571,399 $   13,804,658 $    12,766,325 $  11,261,243 
     
Authority’s proportionate share of the  
  net pension liability as a percentage  
  of its covered payroll 

 
 

1177% 

 
 

1131% 

 
 

1074% 

 
 

803% 
     
Plan fiduciary net position as a    
  percentage of the total pension  
  liability 

 
 

16.18% 

 
 

16.54% 

 
 

19.58% 

 
 

26.26% 

This schedule is intended to show a 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available. The amounts 
presented for each fiscal year are as of the measurement date (September 30 of the previous year). 
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September 30,              2018 2017 2016 2015 
 
Actuarially required contributions 

 
$    6,266,761 

 
$    8,457,374 

 
$    8,323,545 

 
$  6,049,315 

Contributions in relation to the  
   actuarially required contributions 

 
  2,695,328 

 
  2,831,590 

 
  2,936,210 

 
2,580,037 

     
Contribution deficiency (excess) $    3,571,433 $    5,625,784 $    5,387,335 $  3,469,278 
     
Covered-employee payroll  $  14,859,915 $  12,571,399 $  13,804,658 $  12,766,325 
Contributions as a percentage of covered- 
  employee payroll 18.1 22.5 21.3 

 
20.2 

This schedule is intended to show a 10-year trend.  Additional years will be reported as they become available. The amounts 
presented for each fiscal year are as of the latest fiscal year. 
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  St. 
Thomas 
Airport 

 
Special 

Facilities 

 
St. Croix 
Airport 

 
2018 
Total 

 
2017 
Total 

       
Operating revenues       

Users’ fees and dues  $     5,995 $         -                 $    2,980 $    8,975 $  14,279 
Rentals      3,284      640        792    4,716 6,264 
Others      1,330      206    1,333     2,869 4,109 

       
Total operating revenues     10,609      846     5,105   16,560 24,652 
       
Operating expenses       

Payroll, payroll taxes, and  
  fringe benefit      

  
5,132 

 
- 

 
4,223 

 
9,355 

  
8,758 

Repairs and maintenance  1,295 39 1,397 2,731 1,770 
Materials, supplies,  
  and other services 

  
1,115 

 
116 

 
663 

 
1,894 

 
1,596 

Insurance  999 55 484 1,538 1,130 
Depreciation  7,956 38 2,993 10,987 12,821 
Other operating expenses  3,064 140 1,588 4,792 4,818 
General and administrative  
  allocation 

  
10,380 

 
206 

 
6,022 

 
16,608 

 
13,140 

       
Total operating expenses  29,941 594 17,370 47,905 44,033 
       
Operating (loss) income  (19,331) 252 (12,265) (31,344) (19,381) 
       
Non-operating revenues  
  (expenses): 

      

Passenger facility charges  1,380 - - 1,380 2,840 
Customer facility charges  315 - - 315 485 
Other non-operating revenue  
  from the Government 

  
54 

 
- 

 
48 

 
102 

 
- 

Interest income  10 4 - 14 11 
Other non-operating expense   (1,467) - - (1,467) - 
Interest expense  (42) - (2) (44) (62) 

 
Total non-operating revenues, net 

  
250 

 
4 

 
46 

 
300 

 
3,274 

       
 
Change in net position, before  
  capital contributions and special item 

  
 

(19,082) 

 
 

256 

 
 

(12,219) 

 
 

(31,045) 

 
 

(16,107) 
Federal and state government    
  capital contributions  

  
6,636 

 
76 

 
968 

 
7,680 

 
9,817 

Impairment loss on 
  capital assets, net 

  
1,477 

 
234 

 
1,071 

 
2,782 

 
(22,314) 

Allocation of administrative federal and   
  insurance recovery 

  
19,011 

 
377 

 
11,031 

 
30,419 

 
1,851 

       
Change in net position  $     8,043 $    943   $     851 $     9,836 $  (26,753) 

See accompanying notes to other financial information (unaudited). 
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St. Thomas 

 
St. Croix 

2018  
Total 

2017  
Total 

     
Operating revenues     

Users’ fees and dues $  10,556 $  1,406 $  11,962 $  14,146 
Wharfage dues 6,242 1,131 7,373 9,285 
Rentals 4,264 303 4,567 5,517 
Others 286 78 364 745 

     
Total operating revenues 21,348 2,918 24,265 29,693 
 
Operating expenses 

    

Payroll, payroll taxes, and  
     fringe benefits 

 
7,680 

 
2,987 

 
10,667 

 
10,476 

   Repairs and maintenance 382 315 697 478 
Materials, supplies, and  
  other services 

 
2,735 

 
1,037 

 
3,772 

 
2,452 

Insurance 1,152 481 1,633 1,213 
Depreciation 4,020 794 4,814 7,534 
Other operating expenses 1,603 (156) 1,447 1,785 
General and administrative 
  allocation         

 
9,325 

 
2,897 

 
12,222 

 
10,182 

     
Total operating expenses 26,897 8,355 35,252 34,120 
 
Operating income (loss) 

 
(5,549) 

 
(5,437) 

 
(10,986) 

 
(4,427) 

     
Non-operating revenues (expenses):     
Interest income 230 - 230 286 
Other non-operating revenue from  
  the Government 

 
70 

 
22 

 
92 

 
- 

Financing expenses (41) (15) (56) (56) 
Interest expense  (1061) (471) (1,532) (1,589) 
Other non-operating expenses - - - (32) 

     
Total non-operating (expenses), net (802) (464) (1,266) (1,391) 

     
Change in net position, before  
  capital contributions and   
  special item 

 
 

(6,351) 

 
 

(5,901) 

 
 

(12,252) 

 
 

(5,818) 
Federal and state government    
  capital contributions 

 
320 

 
83 

 
403 

 
127 

Insurance recoveries (impairment  
   loss on capital assets), net 

 
1850 

 
433 

 
2,283 

 
(9,856) 

Allocation of administrative capital  
   contributions and special item 

 
17,079 

 
5,305 

 
22,384 

 
1,435 

     
Change in net position $  12,898 $  (80) $  12,818 $  (14,112) 

See accompanying notes to other financial information (unaudited). 
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  2018  2017  
      

Operating Expenses and Non-operating  
   Expenses (Revenues)      
Payroll, payroll taxes, and fringe benefits  $  18,563  $  19,281  
Repairs and maintenance  453  480  
Material, supplies, and other services  8,402  1,507  
Insurance  238  224  
Depreciation  484  694  
Other operating expenses  825  1,104  
Non-operating expenses  66  32  
Non-operating revenue from the Government  (201)  -  
      
  $  28,830  $  23,322  
      
Allocated as follows:      

Aviation  $  16,608  $  13,140  
Marine  12,222  10,182  

      
  $  28,830  $  23,322  

  

 
 

2018  2017  
      

Capital Contributions and Special Item      
Federal and state government capital contributions  $  1,643  $         -  
Insurance recoveries  51,160  4,002  
Impairment loss on capital assets  -  (716)  
      
  $52,803  $  3,286  
      
Allocated as follows:      
    Aviation  $  30,419  $  1,851  
    Marine  22,384  1,435  
      
  $  52,803  $  3,286  
      
      
Total Allocations:      
   Aviation  $  (13,811)  $  11,289  
   Marine  (10,162)  8,747  
      
  $  (23,973)  $  20,036  

See accompanying notes to other financial information (unaudited). 



Virgin Islands Port Authority 
(A Component Unit of the Government of the U.S. Virgin Islands) 

 

Schedule of Net Available Revenues for the Marine Division (Unaudited)  
Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017  

(In thousands of dollars) 
 

57 

  2018  2017  
      

Revenues      
Operating revenues:      

Users’ fees and dues  $  19,335  $  23,431  
Rentals  4,566  5,517  
Others  364  745  

Interest income and insurance recovery  2,513  256  
      
Total revenues  26,778  29,949  
      
Expenses      
Operating expenses:      

Payroll, payroll taxes, and fringe benefits  7,293  7,602  
Repairs and maintenance  697  478  
Materials, supplies, and other services  3,772  2,452  
Insurance  1,633  1,213  
Other operating expenses  1,447  1,785  
General and administrative allocation  8,970  6,931  

      
Total expenses  23,812  20,461  
Operating income   2,966  9,488  
Federal contributions and insurance recovery  22,384  1,435  

Net available revenues  $  25,350  $  10,923  
See accompanying notes to other financial information (unaudited). 
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1. Description of Schedules 
 
The Schedules of Revenues and Expenses present the revenues and expenses of the Aviation Division 
and the Marine Division, respectively.   
 
The Schedule of Net Available Revenues for the Marine Division, as defined in the bonds’ indentures, 
excludes all depreciation and certain non-cash charges such as pension expense related to GASB 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 27, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions 
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 and GASB 
Statement No. 82, Pension Issues – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, 
and also OPEB expenses and revenues related to GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This schedule also excludes 
Passenger Facility Charges revenue and government grants, which are not available for payment of 
debt service because they are restricted for the construction of certain capital projects approved 
by the Federal and local governments.  
  
2. General and Administrative Expenses and Revenues 
 
For purposes of this presentation and consistent with the Authority’s financial practices, an 
allocation of general and administrative expenses is made to each of the divisions. Such expenses 
include operating expenses such as depreciation, maintenance, and others, net of non-operating 
revenues or expenses, related to administrative divisions. These allocations are calculated on the 
basis of total operating expenses between the Marine and Aviation divisions. Additionally, the 
general and administrative items that are capital contributions and special items have been 
allocated separately. 
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